
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
Board of Directors 
 
Friday, January 11, 2019 
Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting 
Kent County Commission Chambers 
300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock  
 
2. Reappointment of Board Members       Jerry Czaja 
 
3. Minutes of December 7, 2018        Action 
 
4. Committee Reports 
  
 A. Operations Committee 
     
 B. Finance Committee 
  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 
   November 30, 2018 
  ii. SMG November 2018 Financial Statements –    Information 
   Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® 
 
5. Re-Engage Progressive AE for Additional Amphitheater Work    Action 
 
6. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars         Rich MacKeigan 
 
7. Public Comment 
 
8. CAA Board Member Comments 
 
9. Adjournment  
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, February 1, 2019 
Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 

 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

JOINT MEETING OF 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES  

Friday, December 7, 2018 
 
 

Attendance  
  
 Board Members:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 

   Rosalynn Bliss 
   Lew Chamberlin 
   Birgit Klohs 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Floyd Wilson, Jr. 
   Richard Winn 
 
Absent:   None  
 
Finance Committee: Jill Ferris 
   Robert Herr 
   Joe Jones 
   Jay Preston 
   Jana Wallace 
 
Liaison Committee: Emily Brieve 
   Diane Jones 
   Matt Kallman 
 
Operations Committee: Tom Almonte 
   Jim Conner 
   Glenn Del Vecchio 
   Jeff Dood 
   Al Jano 
   John Van Fossen 
    
Community 
Inclusion Group: Connie Dang 
   Evette Pittman  
 
Staff/Others:  Chris Anderson   SMG 
   Scott Atchison   Michigan Flashcard 
   Kathy Bart   SMG 
   Tom Bennett   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Wayman Britt   Kent County 
   Hilarie Carpenter  SMG 
   Thomas Coomes  Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 
   Laura D’Artanay  SMG 
   Meghan Distel   Broadway Grand Rapids 
   Jeff Dubin   Savor 
   Jay Fink   SMG 
   Michael Garrett   Pinnacle Construction 
   Samie Garrett   City of Grand Rapids 
    



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 2 

 
    
   Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 
   Mike Guswiler   West Michigan Sports Commission 
   Sarah Hendley   SMG 
   Todd Johnson   SMG 
   Janet Korn   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Andy Kursch   SMG 
   Kim Lindsay   Rehmann 
   Mike Lloyd   Broadway Grand Rapids 
   Chris Machuta   SMG 
   Rich MacKeigan  SMG 
   Mary Manier   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Brian McVicar   The Grand Rapids Press/MLive 
   Tim Mroz   The Right Place 
   Peter Perez   Grand Rapids Symphony 
   Hannah Pigott   SMG 
   Clifford Pitsch   Bluewater Technologies 
   William Odykirk  Bluewater Technologies 
   Marcus Scott   SMG 
   Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 
   Eddie Tadlock   SMG 
   Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 
   John Van Houten  Progressive AE 
   Susan Waddell   CAA 
   Ed Wager   Bluewater Technologies 
   Mark Washington  City of Grand Rapids 
   Richard Wendt   Dickinson Wright 
   Robert White   CAA 
   Paul Ymker   Bluewater Technologies 

 
1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Comments 
 
Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.  Secretary/Treasurer Richard Winn 
recorded the meeting minutes.  Joint CAA Board and Committee meetings are held in June and in 
December each year.  Roundtable introductions followed. 
 
2. Minutes of Prior Meeting 
 
Motion by Mr. Chamberlin, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve the November 2, 2018, Minutes.  Motion 
carried. 
 
3. Grand Rapids Symphony Update 
 
Peter Perez, President and CEO at Grand Rapids Symphony, attended the meeting to present an update on 
the Grand Rapids Symphony.  Peter will be leaving the Symphony at the end of the year and Mary Tuuk 
will come on board in January 2019.  Mary has more than 20 years’ experience in executive leadership 
and retail roles at Meijer and Fifth Third Bank.  Mary is also a member of the Grand Rapids Symphony 
chorus and will continue to sing with the choir.   
 
The Symphony is getting more involved in community outreach.  Almost 2,000 patrons attended its first 
neighborhood free concert held at John Ball Park, back in July.  The Wege Foundation awarded 
the Symphony a $1 million grant to enhance initiatives in diversity, equity, and inclusion to engage a 
broader audience and share live orchestral music with everyone in the community. Additionally, the  



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 3 
 
Symphony offers opportunities for families to attend ticketed performances free of charge including: Free 
For Kids - Students ages 7-18 are able to attend select Symphony concerts for free with the purchase of a 
full-priced adult ticket; and the Symphony Scorecard - Families receiving state aid, as well as those in 
active/reserve/guard military, are eligible to receive up to four free tickets per performance to many of our 
concerts.  Peter next provided a numerical snapshot of the Symphony’s last season.  The Symphony held 
63 concerts in DeVos Performance Hall and rented the hall 102 days for rehearsals, auditions, and other 
events.  The Symphony paid SMG almost $746K in rental fees, stagehands, ushers, security, audio, and 
lighting.  The Symphony sold-out 13 concerts and had 23 additional concerts at 80% capacity.  The 
number of people attending concerts last season increased to 114K, while more than 4,400 people 
received free tickets to attend concerts.  After nearly 13 years, the Symphony returned to Carnegie Hall 
and performed before 2,300 patrons, including Brazilian diplomats.  Chair Heacock thanked Peter for his 
leadership and serving when it was so desperately needed.    
 
4. Committee Reports 
 
 A. Operations Committee 
 
  i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 
 
Mr. Bennett provided an overview of the CVB’s recent bookings, sales activities, marketing efforts, and 
major bid presentations.  In November, staff booked three group for DeVos Place® and hosted several 
site visits that included the Michigan Sheriffs Association, Michigan Army National Guard, Michigan 
Mortgage Lenders Association, Dairy Farmers of America, and the American Pharmacists Association.  
The October Star Report stated that occupancy rate was 73.5% (up 2.8%); average daily rate was $125.52 
(up 3 points); revenue per available room was $92.29 (up 6 points), total overall revenue was up 6 points, 
and demand was up 3 points, as compared to October last year.  Chair Heacock inquired about our 
competition and how well we compete against them.  Mr. Bennett replied that we are competing well and 
that the competitive set changes depending on several factors such as size of the group.  Chair Heacock 
asked about our advantages and disadvantages.  Mr. Bennett replied walkability, friendliness, cleanliness, 
safety, and quality of product are certainly advantages.  We blow people away with our fantastic 
restaurants and the quality of facilities.  Our competition doesn’t rest as it relates to adding quality to their 
infrastructure.  They are either expanding their convention centers or expanding their hotel product.  Our 
team would love to have additional hotels to fill.   
 
 B. Finance Committee 
 
  i. SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the Years 
   Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 – Rehmann  
 
Kim Lindsay of Rehmann presented the SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements for DeVos Place® 
and the Van Andel Arena®.  Mr. Lindsay stated that the main purposes of the special purpose financial 
statements are (i) to calculate the incentive fee and (ii) to express an opinion on the DeVos Place® and 
Van Andel Arena® special purpose financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  Mr. Lindsay stated that Rehmann issued unmodified, 
clean opinions.  SMG exceeded the 2018 benchmark and will receive an incentive fee of $352,880. 
 
  ii. Communication from Independent Auditors Concerning 
   SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements 
 
Mr. Lindsay reviewed the management letter.  There were no control deficiencies.  During the year ended 
June 30, 2018, Rehmann was not aware of any significant changes in accounting policies or their 
application during the year.  There were no uncorrected misstatements or disclosure items passed  
 

https://www.grsymphony.org/free-for-kids
https://www.grsymphony.org/free-for-kids
https://www.grsymphony.org/symphonyscorecard


Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 4 
 
identified during the audit.  Rehmann received the full cooperation of SMG’s management staff and had 
unrestricted access to SMG’s senior management in the performance of the audit.   
 
  iii. Financial Statements and Supplementary Information for the Years 
   Ended June 30 2018 and 2017 – Rehmann  
 
Mr. Lindsay stated that Rehmann issued an unmodified, clean opinion for the CAA’s FY 2018 Financial 
Statements.  Mr. Lindsay referred to page 10, Statements of Net Position, and noted that the CAA 
concluded the year with $23.7 million unrestricted fund balance.   
 
Motion by Mr. Winn, support by Mr. Wilson, to accept the SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements as 
of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the CAA Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Information for the Years Ended June 30 2018 and 2017.  Motion carried. 
 
  iv. Audit Wrap-Up Letter for the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
Mr. Lindsay stated that the management letter did not reveal any control deficiencies.  During the year 
ended June 30, 2018, Rehmann was not aware of any significant changes in accounting policies or their 
application during the year.  There were no uncorrected misstatements or disclosure items passed 
identified during the audit.  Rehmann received the full cooperation of CAA staff.  Mr. Lindsay concluded 
by stating the process was clean and he was pleased with the assistance provided to Rehmann staff. 
 
  v. Consolidated Financial Report, for the Year Ended 
   June 30, 2018, Recap – Budget to Actual 
 
Mr. White stated that the cover memo and Table B reconcile the budget adopted for the year ending June 
30, 2018, with actual results.  The FY 2018 budget, as adopted, forecasted a draw of almost $2.5 million 
on unreserved fund balance.  When the books were closed and the final results determined, there was an 
addition to fund balance of just over $292,000, a $2.8 million swing from negative to positive.  Looking 
at the second page of the memo regarding capital expenditures, the FY 2018 budget included a pending 
allowance of almost $4.4 million.  Six projects, totaling $1.1, were carried over to the FY 2019 budget 
and all other projects were completed at a net savings of $.7 million.  Mr. White referred to Table E, a 
summary of consolidated income statements by facilities from FY 2010 through FY 2019.  Although net 
operating income fluctuated from a high of $3,541,000 to a low of $521,000, the fund balance has 
changed only $1,025,000 for the past nine years (from $24,728,000 in 2010 to $23,703,000 in 2018), even 
in the face of the recession in the early 2010’s.  Mr. Washington asked if there was an actual fund balance 
policy.  Chair Heacock replied affirmatively, in that the CAA has a capital budget that is updated annually 
and is projected-out 10 years for anticipated costs.  The basic policy is that to complete items necessary to 
keep the venues in operation, or that either improves revenues and decrease expenses.  The anticipation 
initially was that this balance would be spent down in 11 years, and the CAA expected that it would be 
decreasing to the point where the CAA would have to think about funding options for repairs and 
maintenance.  For historical context, the CAA was left with $12 million after the construction project 
because the project was managed so well.  The project was completed on time and under budget.  The 
CAA started with more funds than anticipated - a $3 million reserve built in for protection and there is 
also a $3 million operating reserve that remains untapped.  Mr. White drew attention to Table F, a 15-year 
fund balance projection.  Mr. White forecasts a positive fund balance through final bond maturity at 
December 1, 2031.   
 
  
 
 
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 5 
 
 
 vi. Acceptance of October 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Mr. White presented the consolidated financial report for the period ended October 31, 2018.  He 
reviewed the line graph on page 90 of the agenda packet. The green line is the current year actual, the 
yellow line is the adopted FY 2019 budget allocated on a monthly basis, and the red line is last year 
actual.  You can see last year actual generally peaks out at the end of the consumer show season at the end 
of March and trails off until the end of the year.  The budget is more conservative for the current fiscal 
year.  The green line, current year-to-date, the first couple months, July, August and September running 
generally in line with last year actual/this year budget.  October was a very good month for the Arena and 
convention center.  Over to the right, there is a green dot in June of 2019 based on the first quarter roll 
that was presented to you along with the September financial statements.  The forecast was that the year 
would end up better than the original budget.  The original budget forecasted $1,959,000.  Based on the 
first quarter roll, we are looking at just over $2.2 million in net operating proceeds. 
 
Motion by Mr. Winn, support by Ms. Bliss, to accept the October 2018 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.  Motion carried. 
 
  vii. SMG – October 2018 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® 
   Financial Statements 
 
Mr. Machuta reported that the Van Andel Arena® finished a successful October with sold-out Thomas 
Rhett, Fleetwood Mac, and Elton John concerts.  The month also hosted the 22nd consecutive opening 
night sell-out for the Griffins, as they kicked-off their new season.  October was a very strong month at 
DeVos Place® that exceeded budget due to the theater hosting four strong concerts and a September 
event moving to October. 
 
5. HVS Feasibility Study of Proposed Convention Center Hotel 
 
Mr. Secchia stated that a task force formed last year, including himself, Steve Heacock, Rick Winn, and 
Rich MacKeigan, had been exploring ways to convert the underutilized DeVos Place® Monroe Avenue 
meeting rooms into high-yield spaces that allow greater street activation.   
 
The task force engaged the Progressive AE to explore solutions to utilize the space.  The task force added 
Rockford Construction to gain a developer’s perspective for a revised study scope that would encompass 
the site’s highest and best use. Priorities were set for this work.  At the same time, the Destination Asset 
Study, done by Grand Action in 2016, recommended a new 350-500 room hotel attached or very near the 
convention center be explored as a near term goal.  Based on this recommendation, the task force drew up 
a design concept for a 24-story, 400-room, full-service upscale convention hotel.  The CAA Board took 
action, back at its April 2017 meeting, to move forward with a hotel feasibility study.  In June 2017, the 
CAA Board indicated it would like to include a hotel study for the Van Andel Arena®, as well.  The 
Board allocated $125,000 for consulting services to cover hotel studies for Monroe Avenue and the Van 
Andel Arena®, as well as other possible study work. 
 
An RFP was drafted and sent to 10 professional convention center consultant organizations, on January 5, 
2018.  Five very qualified firms responded and, on March 2, 2018, the CAA selected HVS based on the 
CAA’s needs and the extensive experience of HVS.  The cost of the feasibility study was $49,450, plus an 
additional $8,750 for an economic impact analysis. An additional allotment will be spent on some follow 
up work HVS has done as well.  Tom Havinski with HVS attended today’s meeting to present its analysis 
and recommendations regarding the hotel feasibility study.  HVS looked at three sites, DeVos Place®, the 
Van Andel Arena®, and 200 Monroe Avenue. 
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 6 
 
Mr. Hazinski thanked everyone with their assistance in the course of their study.  HVS was engaged to 
recommend the optimal building program for development.  HVS looked at all potential demand 
generators, all the economic indicators, looking at other hotels in the market, define the hotel market, 
finding out how much demand there is and where it comes from.  All that data resulted in a projection of 
where the market is going over the next 10 years.  HVS determined an estimate of market occupancy and 
average daily room rate.  Then we asked how this proposed hotel would capture that market, how it would 
penetrate the market.  Then we conducted a market penetration analysis.  Based on that analysis, HVS 
projected the average daily room rate and the occupancy of the proposed hotel.  HVS did this by market 
segment, looking at business or commercial demand, group meeting demand, and leisure demand.  HVS 
projected those segments going forward on how this hotel would perform.  HVS looked at how other 
hotels that are the same size, similar rates and occupancies perform financially and use that information as 
a guideline for projecting the financial operations.  The final step asked what kind of capital investment 
could the hotel support given the income stream that the hotel is producing.  HVS used a discounted cash 
flow analysis to estimate what the value of the hotel is.   
 
HVS assumed the same building program would be built on one of three sites:  DeVos Place®, 200 
Monroe, NW, or the Van Andel Arena®.  Subsequent to the HVS study, the 200 Monroe site was sold 
and is no longer available for hotel development.  A multi-faceted site analysis indicated that the DeVos 
Place® site is superior over the Arena site, even though the site is constrained and a vertical construction 
may add to project costs.  HVS assumed the proposed hotel would feature a 400-room full-service 
property, including a restaurant, a lounge, a coffee shop, 40,000 square feet of meeting space with a 
20,000 square-foot grand ballroom, a pool, a whirlpool, an exercise room, a business center, a gift shop, 
and a guest laundry room. The hotel would include back-of-the- house space necessary to support full-
service hotel operations.  The additional meeting space is aimed at drawing more convention business 
to Grand Rapids and boosting demand for hotel rooms – not just at the new hotel, but at others in the 
area, as well.   
 
HVS investigated all known new hotel supply and included the proposed hotel in future supply.  Five 
hotel projects, bringing more than 800 new rooms, are underway in the downtown Grand Rapids area. 
That includes a 160-room Hyatt Place Hotel at 150 Ottawa, NW, and a 246-room Embassy Suites by 
Hilton hotel at 710 Monroe, NW.  Even with five new hotels in the downtown area, the convention 
hotel is needed to help the city grow as a destination for regional and national conventions.  It is an 
industry in which continual improvement is necessary to stay competitive.  The proposed hotel would 
have higher occupancy than the competitive hotels, except during the ramp-up period, and would also 
have a higher average daily rate.   
 
The proposed hotel would be publicly owned but privately operated and likely financed through tax-
exempt debt.  Public debt provides the lowest cost of financing.  Cities with publicly-financed hotels 
include Chicago, Houston, Denver, Austin, Dallas, Phoenix, Baltimore, Birmingham, Cleveland, and 
Omaha.  Houston later sold its hotel and incentivized another hotel based on the sale of the first one.  
Another form of financing would be a public-private partnership, where the public sector provides 
incentives or even cash to close the gap in a privately-financed hotel project.  The cost of financing 
with this method is quite high.  A recent structure that has come into play that is being used in some 
developments involves not-for-profit ownership.  A not-for-profit owner holds it for the benefit of the 
authority, and it allows use of tax-exempt debt.   
 
A question and answer period followed.  Ms. Ferris inquired whether the new hotels being constructed 
are within a walkable distance to the proposed hotel.  Mr. Hazinski responded, yes, that the hotels 
under development are within a walkable distance of 10-15 minutes.  Ms. Ferris asked, when adding 
the number of rooms of the hotels under development and the proposed hotel, does that bring us to a 
comparable range.  Mr. Hazinski answered, probably not, because all of the other markets are adding a 
walkable supply, as well.  Mr. Chamberlin asked whether the principal advantage of the convention  
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 7 
 
 
center site was proximity, to which Mr. Hazinski replied affirmatively.  And proximity activates more 
activity in the convention center.  Mr. Chamberlin asked if HVS also studied the additional capacity of 
the convention center to take on more activity.  Mr. Hazinski stated that HVS did a projection of 
convention center performance and considered new function space in the hotel but did not assume 
expansion of the convention center.  Mr. Chamberlin then asked if the convention center has capacity 
to take on additional traffic.  HVS looked tested its projections to make sure it was not introducing 
new events in the convention center that created over-capacity.  There is capacity now and the 
convention center will be hitting limits eventually.  Mr. Winn stated that the Destination Asset Study 
indicated that we needed more hotel rooms, in the short term, to increase the convention center 
capacity.  The convention center currently has a 55% utilization rate.   
 
Ms. Klohs stated that her concern going forward is that, even with the new hotel room supply, 
eventually we will run into a capacity issue that we will not be able to accommodate groups.  Mr. 
MacKeigan stated that currently happens, depending on the time of year.  That’s exactly what the 
Destination Asset Study was set out to identify – what needs to be done to get to the next level.  A 
short-term immediate need was another headquarter hotel.  This hotels allows upward movement to 
get there; in a decade, it will be whether hotels or another barrier to fulfillment.  We will be in a 
position where we need to make an investment, as a community, perhaps with another hotel or 
convention center expansion.  Hopefully, that continues to be the case going forward because that 
means we are moving in the right direction.  Ms. Klohs expressed concern that, if we don’t do 
something, we will fall behind because others will move ahead and Experience Grand Rapids could 
pitch certain conventions.  Mr. MacKeigan agreed and added that this does not take into account a do-
nothing scenario.  If we did nothing, all of our competitors and others move up and we would stay 
where we are.   
 
Mr. Heacock summarized, stating that we have a convention center that is not fully utilized.  To fully 
utilize it and to better compete for conventions, we need a hotel.  The private sector cannot build a 
convention center hotel because it is too expensive in price, at $350,000 per room.  The HVS study 
shows that we could build it with public financing to cover that debt and create more business in the 
convention center, and net cash flow some money from the hotel itself.  The hotel costs $350,000 per 
room because there is a ballroom, meeting rooms, a pool, and all the amenities of a full service hotel.  
A hotel down the street that doesn’t have all those things may be paying $150,000 per room.  A 
private hotel at $150,000 per room can pencil out because of that lower cost.  Mr. Hazinski agreed and 
added that was why they are built.  The disadvantage of those private hotels is that they do not induce 
new demand.  This new hotel would induce new demand for two reasons:  1) it would have its own 
meeting space and bring new groups; and 2) it might have a brand that is not in the market today and it 
would be part of its national sales and marketing efforts and could induce demand for the hotel itself.  
This hotel is bringing new supply that elevates the entire market as opposed to other hotels that just 
absorb the market.  In answer to a question from Ms. Ferris about the appropriate number of rooms, 
Mr. Hazinski responded that the Destination Asset Study identified that 400 rooms would provide a  
sizable room block for conventions, without overbuilding.  Mr. Jano asked whether the hotel footprint 
included parking spaces underneath the hotel.  Mr. Hazinski responded that parking could not be 
accommodated in the footprint.  Parking is always a problem and will have to be solved.  Mr. Secchia 
stated there is a current parking lot below the proposed hotel site that is underutilized at times.  The 
question and answer period concluded. 
 
Motion by Mr. Secchia, support by Mr. Wilson, that the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena 
Authority (i) authorize SMG staff to engage the services of an architect to conduct an in-depth analysis of 
hotel construction at the DeVos Place® site; (ii) enlist the services of an “investment analyst” to assess 
funding options available to the Authority as regards to financing a hotel; and (iii) work with CAA board  
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
December 7, 2018 – 8 
 
 
members to initiate dialogue with officials at the City of Grand Rapids and County of Kent regarding 
their potential participation in financing a hotel.  
 
Mr. Jano asked about the parameters for SMG in selecting an architect, since public dollars will be 
utilized.  There are probably a lot of individuals – near and far – that would be interested in this project.  
Mr. MacKeigan responded that the process would be by competitive bid and that the best bid – not 
necessarily the lowest bid – would be selected.  That is the policy the CAA adopted from day one.   
 
Motion carried.  
 
6. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 
 
Mr. MacKeigan stated that all venues are busy and a number of events will be announced in the coming 
weeks.  Mr. MacKeigan will be attending a convention center national sales meeting next week, in New 
Orleans, along with Eddie Tadlock and Kathy Bart.  The amphitheater may become a “front burner” item 
once again.  Mr. MacKeigan applauded SMG, Savor, DK Security, Blue Water Technology, and IATSE 
staff for all of their hard work to keep the buildings busy and the clients happy.   
 
7. Public Comment 
 
None.   

 
8. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:50 a.m. 
 

     ______________________________________   
Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility
Rolling Forecast 2
Year-to-Date Comparable 3
Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY18 & FY19 4
Lagging 12-Month Comparison - 12/15 Through 11/18 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts
Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report
November 30, 2018



-1-

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 39                 24                 27                   8                     12                  14                           
Attendance 179,755        175,000        192,269          59,786            101,000         121,219                  
Event Income 1,140,093$   1,230,406$   1,459,248$     668,096$        974,068$       1,270,756$             

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 228               197               217                 78                   89                  92                           
Attendance 246,485        193,755        189,019          68,307            87,200           63,434                    
Event Income 2,871,647$   2,353,916$   2,441,462$     1,169,473$     1,098,595$    1,205,229$             

Prior Year Budget Actual
Operating Income (Loss) 1,027,371$     315,749$       1,176,683$             
Capital/Repair/Replacement (1,293,701)      (1,754,474)     (1,711,910)              
Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (266,330)$       (1,438,725)$   (535,227)$               (1)

*NOTES: (1):
      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2018 23,703,790$   

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard
Year-To-Date (5 Months)

November 30, 2018

DeVos Place®

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade



-2-

FY 2018
7/1 - 11/30

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate(1) Budget Prior Year
Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 2,535,669$      3,610,382$      6,146,051$      5,847,699$      6,767,205$    
                    - Expenses - Facilities (1,737,080)       (2,625,561)$     (4,362,641)      (4,302,641)      (4,536,357)     
                               - Base Management Fees (73,517)            (102,923)$       (176,440)         (176,440)         (176,440)        
                               - Incentive Fee -                       (92,319)$         (92,319)           (92,319)           (133,957)        
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 725,072           789,579$         1,514,651        1,276,299        1,920,451      
   Parking 170,082           283,918$         454,000           454,000           366,974         
   Pedestrian Safety (21,102)            (88,898)$         (110,000)         (110,000)         (82,923)          
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 874,052           984,599$         1,858,651        1,620,299        2,204,502      

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 2,463,416        4,125,779$      6,589,195        6,519,176        7,192,939      
                   - Expenses - Facilities (2,581,786)       (3,779,140)$     (6,360,926)      (6,360,926)      (6,803,548)     
                              - Base Management Fees (73,517)            (102,923)$       (176,440)         (176,440)         (176,440)        
                              - Incentive Fee -                       (260,561)$       (260,561)         (260,561)         (218,923)        
   Net Operating Income (Loss) (191,887)          (16,845)$         (208,732)         (278,751)         (5,972)            
   Parking 643,289           603,780$         1,247,069        1,247,069        1,272,941      
   Pedestrian Safety (10,929)            (47,171)$         (58,100)           (58,100)           (45,050)          
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 440,473           539,764$         980,237           910,218           1,221,919      

Other
   Revenues 180,178           331,822$         512,000           512,000           397,523         
   Expenses (318,020)          (805,111)$       (1,123,131)      (1,123,131)      (3) (913,502)        (2)

     Net Other (137,842)          (473,289)$       (611,131)         (611,131)         (515,979)        

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 1,176,683        1,051,074$      2,227,757        1,919,386        2,910,442      

Capital Expenditures (1,711,910)       (4,433,716)$     (6,145,626)      (6,188,190)      (4) (2,618,105)     
Results Net of Capital Expenditures (535,227)$        (3,382,642)$     (3,917,869)$     (4,268,804)$     292,337$       

Notes:
(1) Second Quarter Update to be Provided with January Financial Report (2/1/19 Board Meeting).
(2) Includes One-Time Contribution, of $200,000, to Deferred Compensation Plan.
(3) Includes budget amendment to provide for hotel study carryover balance of $39,513.
(4) Includes budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances carried over from FY 18.  See June 2018
    consolidated financial report for details. 

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

FY 2019



-3-

Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-11/30 7/1 - 11/30 Change

Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 6,767,205$    5,847,699$      (13.6) 2,053,562$      2,535,669$        23.5
                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,536,357)     (4,302,641)      5.2 (1,705,202)      (1,737,080)        (1.9)
                               - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (73,517)           (73,517)             0.0
                               - Incentive Fee (133,957)        (92,319)           31.1             -                      -                        -                 
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,920,451      1,276,299        (33.5)            274,843           725,072             163.8
   Parking 366,974         454,000           23.7 171,750           170,082             (1.0)              
   Pedestrian Safety (82,923)          (110,000)         (32.7) (7,268)             (21,102)             (190.3)          
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 2,204,502      1,620,299        (26.5) 439,325           874,052             99.0             

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 7,192,939      6,519,176        (9.4)              2,886,896        2,463,416          (14.7)
                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,803,548)     (6,360,926)      6.5 (2,549,096)      (2,581,786)        (1.3)
                              - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (73,517)           (73,517)             0.0
                              - Incentive Fee (218,923)        (260,561)         (19.0)            -                      -                        -                 
   Net Operating Income (Loss) (5,972)            (278,751)         (4567.6) 264,283           (191,887)           (172.6)
   Parking 1,272,941      1,247,069        (2.0) 440,562           643,289             46.0
   Pedestrian Safety (45,050)          (58,100)           (29.0)            (7,067)             (10,929)             (54.6)            
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,221,919      910,218           (25.5) 697,778           440,473             (36.9)

Other
   Revenues 397,523         512,000           28.8 102,899           180,178             75.1             
   Expenses (913,502)        (1,123,131)      (22.9) (212,631)         (318,020)           (49.6)
     Net Other (515,979)        (611,131)         (18.4)            (109,732)         (137,842)           (25.6)

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 2,910,442      1,919,386        (34.1)            1,027,371        1,176,683          14.5             

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,618,105)     (6,188,190)      (136.4) (1,293,701)      (1,711,910)        (32.3)
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 292,337$       (4,268,804)      (1,460.2)       (266,330)$       (535,227)$         (101.0)          

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2019



-4-



-5-



-6-

Van Andel Arena®
•      Page 1 - Fourteen concerts generated $1,270,756 in event revenue, an increase of 90.2% from

prior year (8 concerts) of $668,096.
•        Page 3 - Net proceeds of $874,052 increased by 99.0% from prior year of $439,325.

DeVos Place®
•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $1,205,229 in event revenue, an

increase of +3.1% from prior year (attendance decreased from 68,307 to 63,434) of $1,169,473.
•        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of $440,473 decreased by (36.9%) from prior year Net Proceeds

of $697,778.

Significant Notes



-7-

FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-11/30 7/1/-11/30 Change

Other
Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 282,816$     392,000$     38.6             99,243$           180,178$       81.6             
Miscellaneous 114,707       120,000       4.6               3,656               -                     (100.0)          

397,523       512,000       28.2             102,899           180,178         75.1             
Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 208,333       200,000       (4.0)              -                      66,667           100.0+
Diversity Initiative 60,420         275,000       355.1           26,376             12,331           (53.2)            
Wages/Benefits 141,012       140,318       (0.5)              47,560             46,575           (2.1)              
Professional Services 86,103         78,000         (9.4)              30,271             27,423           (9.4)              
DID Assessment 60,326         58,200         (3.5)              40,254             62,616           55.6             
Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      2,623             100.0+
Consulting Services 73,006         189,513       (1) 159.6           8,143               41,881           414.3           
Landscaping 24,346         25,000         2.7               16,274             4,275             (73.7)            
Procurement of Art 13,188         30,000         127.5           8,057               26,214           225.3           
Insurance 14,713         27,100         84.2             21,260             17,349           (18.4)            
Supplies/Other 232,055       (2) 60,000         (74.1)            14,436             10,066           (30.3)            

913,502       1,123,131    22.9             212,631           318,020         49.6             

Net Proceeds - Operating (515,979)$    (611,131)$    (18.4)            (109,732)$       (137,842)$      (25.6)            
Notes: .

(1) Includes SMG $53,225 and $39,513 for hotel study, and $96,775 for "destination asset study follow-up work."
(2) Includes $200,000 one-time payment to deferred comp. trust.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

November 30, 2018



































 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
To:  CAA Operations Committee 
  CAA Board Members 
 
From:  Steve Heacock, CAA Chair 
  Rich MacKeigan, CAA Executive Director  
   
Subject: Re-Engagement of Progressive AE for Additional Amphitheater Work 
 
Date:  January 9, 2019 
 
 
The State of Michigan has agreed to provide $5 million dollars towards the construction of an 
outdoor concert venue in West Michigan.  The efforts to secure the funding were pulled together 
fairly quickly and over the holidays, so we would like to provide this update to the CAA Board 
and Committees. 
 
The CAA has been discussing an Amphitheater for over 10 years now.  The concept of a ten-to- 
fifteen thousand capacity outdoor venue was identified as an item worth consideration during 
Chair Heacock’s State of the CAA address over 10 years ago, and a study was commissioned to 
look at possible sites as well as rough construction costs.  A number of stakeholder conversations 
were had, and the potential of hosting this venue at Millennium Park was identified as possible. 
 
Progressive AE was asked to study if an amphitheater could fit on a site within the Millennium 
Park footprint.  At that time, the City of Grand Rapids, Kent County, Kent County Parks 
Foundation, and the Kent County Parks Department were all in favor of this possibility.  A 
construction estimate was established at $30 million dollars. 
 
All of this work was presented to the CAA in meetings during 2007 and 2008.  The CAA 
explored securing funding from the State at that time, but was turned down.  Subsequently, the 
economy was slowing and this downturn negatively impacted the venue’s chance of success. 
Additionally, the needed public funding became even more difficult to secure.  The CAA opted 
to defer pursuing this project until such time that conditions changed.  
 
The concert industry in West Michigan has been very strong for the last couple of years.  The 
economy in Grand Rapids continues to be positive.  National promoters have expressed interest 
in re-engaging the amphitheater conversation.  These conditions caused us to revisit 
conversations with stakeholders over the last few months. Currently, the City, County, Parks 
Foundation, and other stakeholders still have a strong interest in this possible venue.  The recent 
funding opportunities with the state became apparent and funding of at least $5 million was  



 
 
 
 
 
secured.  The request to the state was for $10 million and there has been some willingness on 
their part to consider an additional $5 million for next year.  This additional money should not be 
counted on at this time, it was only described as a consideration. 
 
In light of this progress, we would like to request that Progressive AE be re-engaged to perform 
additional geo-technical work, as well as develop a scope of services document to establish a 
firm construction cost, as well as confirm site(s) ability to accept this venue. 
 
Recent conversations have also been had with key stakeholders to provide some updates, as well 
as confirm their continued support.  
 
We would anticipate a more complete estimate and site decision to be available within the next 
two to three months.  We will continue to have conversations with the State to both keep them 
informed, as well as work towards securing additional funding.  We will continue to keep this on 
the CAA agenda to provide updates at our meetings. 
 
Action Requested:  Re-Engage Progressive AE, at a cost not to exceed $15,000, to (i) perform 
additional geo-technical work; (ii) confirm ability of sites to accept this venue; and (iii) develop 
a scope of services necessary to finalize a complete project cost. These funds can be absorbed 
within the current year’s fiscal budget. 
 


	Agenda.CAA
	Board of Directors
	Friday, January 11, 2019
	1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock
	2. Reappointment of Board Members       Jerry Czaja
	3. Minutes of December 7, 2018        Action


	December.2018
	JOINT MEETING OF
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
	Friday, December 7, 2018
	Attendance


	November 2018 
	Cover Sheet
	Dashboard
	Roll
	Consolidated Statement
	Monthly Net Proceeds
	Lagging 12 Months
	Significant Notes
	Administrative Accounts

	SMG Financial Statement.November 2018
	Memo - Re-Engage Progressive for Amphitheater

